
 
 

City of Cincinnati Retirement System 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

 

Agenda 
 

October 5, 2023 / 2:00 P.M. 
 City Hall, Council Chambers and via Zoom  

 
Members       CRS Staff 
Bill Moller, Chair      Karen Alder 
Tom Gamel, Vice Chair      Jon Salstrom 
Kathy Rahtz        
Mark Menkhaus, Jr.      Law 
Monica Morton       Ann Schooley 
John Juech       Linda Smith 
Tom West 
Seth Walsh 
Aliya Riddle 
 

Call to Order    
 
Public Comment 
 
Approval of Minutes 

 Meeting Minutes – September 14, 2023 
 

Report from Governance Committee 
 
Informational – Staff Report 

 Marquette Investment Report 
 Fiduciary Audit 
 Investment Consultant 
 DROP Actuarial Analysis Peer Review Update 
 Disabled Adult Children Ordinance Update 
 Healthcare Funding Policy 

 
Old Business  
 
New Business 

 Board & Committee Meetings Schedule ‘24 
 
Adjournment   
 
Next Meeting: Thursday, November 2, 2023, 2:00 P.M. City Hall Council Chambers and via Zoom 



 

 

 

City of Cincinnati Retirement System 
Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 

September 14, 2023 / 2:00 P.M. 
City Hall – Council Chambers and remote 

 
Board Members      Administration 
Bill Moller, Chair      Karen Alder 
Tom Gamel, Co-Chair      Jon Salstrom 
Kathy Rahtz        
Mark Menkhaus Jr. 
Monica Morton       Law 
John Juech       Ann Schooley 
Tom West       Linda Smith 
Seth Walsh 
Aliya Riddle 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Moller called the meeting to order at 2:01 p.m. and a roll call of attendance was taken. Trustees 
Moller, Gamel, Rahtz, Menkhaus, Morton, and Juech were present. Trustee West joined at 2:05 p.m. 
Trustee Walsh was absent. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
No public comment. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Approval of the minutes of the Board meeting of July 13, 2023, was moved by Trustee Gamel and 
seconded by Trustee Juech. Chair Moller clarified one minor item that did not require any Board action. 
On the Report from Investment Committee, the second bullet, Ft. Washington Way should be the Ft. 
Washington Fund. The minutes were approved by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
Report from Benefits and Performance Evaluation Committees 
Benefits Committee 
Trustee Gamel explained there was a motion to change the survivor benefits moving forward from 
monthly payments to a lump sum. The motion was made by Chair Moller and no second was necessary. 
The motion was approved by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
 
 



 

 

Performance Evaluation Committee 
Trustee Rahtz explained the two motions that were made by the Performance Evaluation Committee. 

• Motion to approve the Executive Director performance evaluation period to be the anniversary 
year. The motion was made by Chair Moller and no second was necessary. The motion was 
approved by unanimous roll call vote. 

• Motion to approve the format previously approved by the Board for the performance evaluation 
of the Executive Director, to continue to be used. The motion was made by Chair Moller and no 
second was necessary. The motion was approved by unanimous roll call vote. 
 

Informational – Staff Report 
Marquette Investment Report 
Chair Moller referenced the July Investment Report in the packet and asked if there were any questions.  
There were no questions or discussion. 
 
2nd Quarter Demographic Report 
Chair Moller referenced the 2nd Quarter report in the packet and asked if there were any questions. 
There were no questions or discussion. 
 
Futures Commission Update 
Chair Moller explained the Futures Commission was created by the mayor to look at the city’s financial 
situation in the long-term. The Commission requested a meeting and information regarding the 
Retirement System. Director Salstrom gave typical information about the Retirement System’s financial 
status. 
 
The Commission’s consultant, Ernst & Young, had an actuary present at the meeting and asked Chair 
Moller and Director Salstrom a series of questions that were answered accordingly. Chair Moller 
emphasized the Board’s incremental increase plans to fully fund the pension trust between now and 
2045. 
 
Procurement Update (RFPs for Investment Consultant, Fiduciary Audit) 
Director Salstrom stated he is hopeful of starting to work with Funston Advisory Services next week for 
the completion of the Fiduciary Audit.  
 
Director Salstrom informed the Board that the contract is being finalized with the Investment Consultant, 
Marquette. The only thing changing is the term, not the scope of the contract. He is hopeful to have that 
finalized in the next few weeks and executed before the end of the year. 
 
DROP Actuarial Analysis Peer Review Update 
Chair Moller reminded the Board that Foster and Foster was hired through the city to do an analysis of 
the DROP program and their perception was whether the DROP program was cost neutral, which they 
determined it was. There is a report from a few years ago from Cheiron that used actual information that 
stated the DROP program increased the liability of pension trust by $11 million.  
 
At a prior Board meeting, an expenditure of $16,000 was approved for Cheiron to update their report 
with actual information. Since then, the city has decided to ask Foster and Foster to update their report 
based on actual information. Director Salstrom spoke with Foster and Foster and explained the different 
approach between their report and Cheiron’s and articulated the Board’s dilemma in comparing the two. 
He was scheduled to have a call with Foster and Foster the following day to discuss whether a memo 



 

 

highlighting and explaining the differences in the report compared to Cheiron’s would be efficient or if 
they would do a whole new analysis. 
 
Chair Moller expressed his confusion on the city’s position; if they are wanting the Foster and Foster 
analysis rerun and if the city would pay for it. Ms. Alder responded that the city is not opposed to Foster 
and Foster rerunning the report, but waiting for more information from them to see what they are 
willing to do and if it is sufficient. 
 
Chair Moller suggested to the Board that this be kept on the agenda and get an update at the next Board 
meeting. Trustee Gamel agreed, and no other Board members objected. 
 
Disabled Adult Children Ordinance 
Director Salstrom explained that this ordinance was presented to the Budget and Finance Committee 
meeting and on the schedule for the following Monday. He was hopeful it would be finalized the 
following week. 
 
Healthcare Funding Policy  
Chair Moller asked if there was an update on the Healthcare Funding Policy which Director Salstrom 
indicated there was no update at that time.  
 
Old Business 
CRS CY2022 Annual Report 
Chair Moller explained that the report went to Council and the Budget and Finance Committee last 
Monday. Chair Moller and Director Salstrom were in attendance to discuss the report. There was no 
formal presentation due to the Committee seeing most of the information already, however, they did go 
over the recommendations in the report with the council members. Chair Moller explained the 
importance of the incremental annual increase plan that they provided and hopeful the council 
members will try to resolve this issue in anticipation of the next budget cycle. 
 
New Business 
Chair Moller explained that there will be a training for the Board after the next session as a refresher on 
the Board compliance concepts provided by the Law Department. Because it is an educational session, it 
is not part of the Board agenda and will take place once the Board meeting is adjourned. 
 
Chair Moller explained that staff is taking a preliminary look at potentially moving the Board and 
Committee meetings to room 115 on the first floor of City Hall. Chair Moller personally felt that this may 
be a better place to hold the meetings than in Council Chambers. 
 
Adjournment 
Following a motion to adjourn by Trustee Gamel and seconded by Trustee Morton. The Board approved 
the motion by unanimous roll call vote. The meeting adjourned at 2:49 p.m. 
 
Meeting video link: https://archive.org/details/crs-board-9-14-23 
 
Next Meeting: Thursday, October 5, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. – City Hall Council Chambers and via Zoom  
 
 
 

https://archive.org/details/crs-board-9-14-23


 

 

 
____________________________________________ 

Secretary 
 
 



City of Cincinnati

Retirement System

Executive Summary

Cincinnati Retirement System

August 31, 2023





Total Fund Composite As of August 31, 2023
Summary of Cash Flows

  Last Month
_

Beginning Market Value $2,302,245,587
Net Cash Flow -$12,830,128
Net Investment Change -$38,626,255
Ending Market Value $2,250,789,204

_

Market Value

Market Value
($) % of Portfolio Policy % Policy Difference

($)
_

Total Fund Composite 2,250,789,204 100.0 100.0 0

Fixed Income Composite 376,574,031 16.7 22.5 -129,853,540

Private Debt Composite 38,092,128 1.7 3.0 -29,431,548

U.S. Equity Composite 656,493,614 29.2 28.5 15,018,691

Non-U.S. Equity Composite 406,120,518 18.0 18.0 978,461

Volatility Risk Premium Composite 59,620,915 2.6 2.5 3,351,185

Real Estate Composite 186,332,074 8.3 7.5 17,522,884

Infrastructure Composite 257,772,760 11.5 10.0 32,693,840

Private Equity Composite 257,557,386 11.4 8.0 77,494,250

Total Cash Equivalents 12,225,777 0.5 -- 12,225,777
XXXXX

Marquette Associates, Inc. 1

Performance

1 Mo 3 Mo YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs Inception Inception
Date

_

Total Fund Composite -1.7% 3.8% 7.3% 7.0% 8.7% 6.5% 7.5% 8.7% May-85
Target Benchmark -1.7% 3.7% 7.4% 6.7% 7.3% 6.5% 7.5% -- May-85

Fixed Income Composite -0.6% -0.3% 2.7% 0.5% -1.9% 1.5% 2.6% 5.0% Nov-95
Bloomberg US Aggregate TR -0.6% -1.1% 1.4% -1.2% -4.4% 0.5% 1.5% 4.2% Nov-95

Private Debt Composite 0.0% 2.9% 7.8% 13.4% -- -- -- 2.4% Sep-20
Bloomberg US Aggregate TR -0.6% -1.1% 1.4% -1.2% -4.4% 0.5% 1.5% -4.5% Sep-20

U.S. Equity Composite -2.4% 8.6% 14.3% 12.2% 13.3% 8.4% 10.7% 9.3% Feb-89
Russell 3000 -1.9% 8.5% 18.0% 14.8% 9.8% 10.2% 12.2% 10.5% Feb-89

Non-U.S. Equity Composite -4.4% 4.0% 8.9% 12.3% 5.6% 2.8% 4.6% 5.6% May-93
MSCI ACWI ex USA -4.5% 3.8% 8.8% 11.9% 4.0% 3.3% 4.4% -- May-93

Volatility Risk Premium Composite -0.5% 3.5% 12.1% 12.4% -- -- -- 2.8% Jan-22
CBOE Put Write Index -2.3% 1.7% 11.6% 12.3% 11.1% 5.3% 7.1% 3.5% Jan-22

Real Estate Composite -0.4% -1.7% -4.4% -9.0% 8.2% 6.6% 8.8% 5.7% Aug-07
NFI-ODCE 0.0% -1.0% -6.1% -10.9% 7.0% 5.3% 7.5% 4.7% Aug-07
NPI 0.0% -0.7% -3.7% -6.9% 6.6% 5.7% 7.6% 6.2% Aug-07

Infrastructure Composite -0.2% 2.8% 5.0% 9.1% 9.7% 8.6% 7.7% 8.3% Aug-08
3 Month T-Bill +4% 0.8% 2.3% 5.8% 8.4% 5.6% 5.6% 5.1% 4.8% Aug-08

Private Equity Composite 0.0% 2.7% 4.3% 3.3% 19.1% 14.8% 13.9% 8.8% Jul-93
Burgiss Global All Private Equity 0.0% 1.2% 2.8% 1.1% 20.1% 16.6% 15.9% 15.5% Jul-93



 
 
 

DISCLOSURE 
 

Marquette Associates, Inc. (“Marquette”) has prepared this document for the 
exclusive use by the client or third party for which it was prepared. The information 
herein was obtained from various sources, including but not limited to third party 
investment managers, the client's custodian(s) accounting statements, commercially 
available databases, and other economic and financial market data sources. 

The sources of information used in this document are believed to be reliable. 
Marquette has not independently verified all of the information in this document and 
its accuracy cannot be guaranteed. Marquette accepts no liability for any direct or 
consequential losses arising from its use. The information provided herein is as of the 
date appearing in this material only and is subject to change without prior notice. 
Thus, all such information is subject to independent verification and we urge clients to 
compare the information set forth in this statement with the statements you receive 
directly from the custodian in order to ensure accuracy of all account information. Past 
performance does not guarantee future results and investing involves risk of loss. No 
graph, chart, or formula can, in and of itself, be used to determine which securities or 
investments to buy or sell.  

Forward‐looking statements, including without limitation any statement or prediction 
about a future event contained in this presentation, are based on a variety of estimates 
and assumptions by Marquette, including, but not limited to, estimates of future 
operating results, the value of assets and market conditions. These estimates and 
assumptions, including the risk assessments and projections referenced, are inherently 
uncertain and are subject to numerous business, industry, market, regulatory, geo‐
political, competitive, and financial risks that are outside of Marquette's control. There 
can be no assurance that the assumptions made in connection with any forward‐
looking statement will prove accurate, and actual results may differ materially.  

The inclusion of any forward‐looking statement herein should not be regarded as an 
indication that Marquette considers forward‐looking statements to be a reliable 
prediction of future events. The views contained herein are those of Marquette and 
should not be taken as financial advice or a recommendation to buy or sell any security. 
Any forecasts, figures, opinions or investment techniques and strategies described are 
intended for informational purposes only. They are based on certain assumptions and 
current market conditions, and although accurate at the time of writing, are subject to 
change without prior notice. Opinions, estimates, projections, and comments on 
financial market trends constitute our judgment and are subject to change without 
notice. Marquette expressly disclaims all liability in respect to actions taken based on 
any or all of the information included or referenced in this document. The information 
is being provided based on the understanding that each recipient has sufficient 
knowledge and experience to evaluate the merits and risks of investing. 

Marquette is an independent investment adviser registered under the Investment 
Advisers Act of 1940, as amended. Registration does not imply a certain level of skill 
or training. More information about Marquette including our investment strategies, 
fees and objectives can be found in our ADV Part 2, which is available upon request. 



FAS Activities 

October November December January 

2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 

Phase 1:  Current State Analysis                  

1. Review and analyze current CRS charters, 
governance policies and practices 

                 

2. Develop customized CRS InGov© profile                  

3. Design and conduct a customized 360° Self-
Assessment Survey 

                 

4. Analyze CRS’s InGov© profile and governance 
survey  

                 

5. Prepare preliminary discussion document 
and conduct individual interviews with CRS 
Board (9), other key stakeholders (2), and 
staff (4) 

                 

6. Prepare and discuss preliminary findings, 
conclusions, and recommendations with CRS 
Board of Trustees 

                 

 











FAS Activities 

October November December January 

2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 

Phase 1:  Current State Analysis                  

1. Review and analyze current CRS charters, 
governance policies and practices 

                 

2. Develop customized CRS InGov© profile                  

3. Design and conduct a customized 360° Self-
Assessment Survey 

                 

4. Analyze CRS’s InGov© profile and governance 
survey  

                 

5. Prepare preliminary discussion document 
and conduct individual interviews with CRS 
Board (9), other key stakeholders (2), and 
staff (4) 

                 

6. Prepare and discuss preliminary findings, 
conclusions, and recommendations with CRS 
Board of Trustees 

                 

 


	1 Board Agenda 10-05-2023
	2 CRS Board Minutes 9-14-2023_DRAFT
	3 CRS - 8-2023
	4 Funston CRS Workplan
	5 Funston Advisory Services
	CRS Workplan

